
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Proclamation Acknowledging July as Parks Make Life Better
Month

Staff Report - Proclamation 5
Minutes

June 18, 2014 7
Payroll

May 25-June 7, 2014 10
June 8-21, 2014 14

Warrants
Accounts Payable 18

Purposed Kerman Inn Mural Project
Staff Report - Proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project 39

Sphere of Influence Boundary Change
Staff Report - SOI Boundary Change 43

Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman
Staff Report - Banking RFP 48

Katey's Kids Park Restroom Update
Staff Report - Katey's Kids Park Restroom Options 54

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, July 02, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  
Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep 
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best to 
serve our community. 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Proclamation Acknowledging July as Parks Make Life Better Month (PG) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt proclamation acknowledging July as Parks Make Life 
Better Month. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Proclamation 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items of 
interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council. 
Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made during this 
period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council on items on 
the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the Mayor will recognize 
your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is prohibited by law from taking any 
action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. Speakers are asked to please use the 
microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: June 18, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: May 25, 2014 - June 07, 2014: $116,465.89; Overtime: $3,538.91; 
Standby & FTO: $1,100.84; Comp Time Earned: 9.0; Uniform Allowance: $6,075.00; 
Holiday Pay: $19,850.10 
 
Payroll Report: June 08, 2014 - June 21, 2014: $121,253.90; Retro Pay: $23.68; 
Overtime: $4,652.93; Standby & FTO: $962.52; Comp Time Earned: 16.5 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report - May 25-June 7, 2014/June 8-21, 2014 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 

Nos. 20950-21069: $374,588.76; Electronic Bank Transfers: $41,382.04 
Excepting:  Kerwest Newspaper: #20992 - $297.50 
 Valley Food Center: #21018 - $247.73 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Purposed Kerman Inn Mural Project (PG) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council review, provide input and support the proposed Kerman 
Inn Mural Project. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project  
 

3



B. SUBJECT: Sphere of Influence Boundary Change (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council receive an update on the proposed Sphere of Influence 
boundary change and direct staff accordingly. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - SOI Boundary Change 
 

C. SUBJECT: Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council review proposals and adopt resolution selecting preferred 
banking service provider for the City of Kerman. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Banking RFP 
 

D. SUBJECT: Katey's Kids Park Restroom Update (PG) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff seeks Council’s input, suggestions and approval for the 
Katey’s Kids Park restroom facility. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Katey's Kids Park Restroom Options 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
A. Nominations for City Council is July 14, 2014 - August 8, 2014. A candidate filing class 

will be held on Wednesday, July 9, 2014, 5:30-7:00 p.m. at the Fresno County 
Elections Office Training Room. 

 
6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; Agency 
Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee organization: City of 
Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and Kerman Public Safety Employees 
Association. 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

4



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS AND RECREATION 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JULY 2, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks, Recreation and Community Services Director 
Subject: Proclamation acknowledging July as Parks Make Life Better Month 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council adopt proclamation acknowledging July as Parks Make Life Better Month. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Since 1985, the National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) and California Parks and Recreation Society 
(CPRS) have recognized the month of July as Parks Make Life Better Month in California and nationally as Parks 
and Recreation Month. Cities, counties and other agencies recognize the importance of thriving, local park systems 
as providing an opportunity for all Americans to lead healthy, active lifestyles, and the preservation of great 
community places. Parks and Recreation are important to communities as they enhance the quality of life of its 
citizens.  
 
By the designation of July as Parks Make Life Better Month, the City of Kerman’s Department of Parks, Recreation 
and Community Services, reminds Kerman residents to enjoy healthy lifestyles and livable communities and urge all 
residents to enjoy and recognize the social, physical, mental, economic, environmental and community benefits 
derived from our Parks, Recreation and Community Services Department, which provide something of value to 
everyone. 
 
As we observe Parks Make Life Better Month, we recognize the vital contributions of our local employees and 
volunteers who assist public parks and recreation facilities. These dedicated people keep public parks clean and 
safe for visitors, organize and coach youth sports teams, provide special events, day camps, swim lessons, 
educational programming on health, nutrition and first aid, advocate for more open space and better trails, and 
fundraise for local improvements. They ensure that public parks and recreation facilities are safe and accessible 
places for all citizens to enjoy.  
 
NRPA and CPRS are organizations dedicated to advancing park, recreation and conservation efforts that enhance 
quality of life for all people. Through a network of more than 19,000 recreation and park professionals and citizens, 
NRPA and CPRS encourage the promotion of healthy lifestyles, recreation initiatives, and conservation of natural 
and cultural resources. 
 

Attachment: 
 

A. Proclamation  
  

5



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Proclamation: July Parks Make Life Better! Month 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

July is Parks Make Life Better Month 
2014 

 
 WHEREAS, promoting a healthy lifestyle, building community, and encouraging livable neighborhoods are 
the goals of the Parks, Recreation and Community Services Department; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the vision of Parks, Recreation and Community Services is to build communities of people 
connected by play, hope and joy in life; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is established through statewide public opinion research, 98% of California households visit a 
local park at least once a year; two in three households visit a park once a month; 50% of households participate in 
an organized recreation program; and most park use is with family and friends; and  
 
 WHEREAS, residents value recreation as it provides positive alternatives for children and youth to reduce 
crime and mischief especially during non-school hours; it promotes the arts, it increases social connections; aids in 
therapy; and promotes lifelong learning; and 
 
 WHEREAS, residents value their parks for access to outdoor spaces for children and adults to play and be 
active; exercise and group sports; and  
 
 WHEREAS, parks provide access to the serenity and the inspiration of nature and outdoor spaces as well as 
preserve and protect the historic, natural and cultural resources in our community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the residents of Kerman including children, youth, families, adults, seniors, businesses, 
community organizations, and visitors benefit from the wide range of parks, trails, open space, sports fields, facilities 
and programs including Summer Camp, Aquatics, Youth Volley Ball, Coed Softball and Senior Services provided by 
Kerman Parks, Recreation and Community Services Department; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City or Kerman urges all its residents to recognize that parks and recreation enriches the 
lives of its residents and visitors as well as adding value to the community’s homes and neighborhoods; and 
 
 WHEREAS, July is celebrated across the nation as Parks and Recreation Month.  
 
 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Kerman hereby proclaims July 2014 as Parks Make Life Better! 
Month and in doing so, urges all its citizens to use and enjoy its parks, trails, open space, facilities, and recreation 
opportunities. 
 
I, Mayor Gary Yep, do hereby affix my signature and direct the City Clerk to affix the official seal of the City of 
Kerman on behalf of the City Council on this 2nd day of July, 2014. 
 
        _____________________________ 
            Gary Yep 
              Mayor 

6



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, June 18, 2014 

6:30 PM  
   

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Dhaliwal (RD), Nijjer (BN), Wilcox (DW)  
Absent: Fox 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City 
Attorney Blum, Community Services Director, Finance Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep  

• Call to Order 6:35 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present except 
DW/NF 

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 
 
 
 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: May 25, 2014 - June 7, 2014: $116,465.89; Overtime: 
$3,538.91; Standby & FTO: $1,100.84; Comp Time Earned: 9 Hours 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 

Nos. 39321-39373: $69,230.73; Electronic Funds Transfer: $44,709.08 
Excepting: Valley Food Center: #39369 - $6.46 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

Approved RD/BN (3-0-
2) DW/NF w/changes 
Tabled 2.B & 4.E to the 
July 2, 2014 mtg. 
 

Approved as amended 
RD/BN (3-0-2) DW/NF 
None 

Felix Gonzales/Misc. 
Employees Group 
6:49 p.m. DW arrived 
 
Approved DW/RD 
except 39369 (4-0-1) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.B Tabled to July 2, 
2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved 39369 
DW/RD (3-0-1-1) 
NF/GY 

7



D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending May 31, 2014 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as 
presented 

 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Confirming Review of the Biennial Conflict of 
Interest Code (MR) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution confirming biennial 
review with no amendments to the conflict of interest code and accept 
the 2014 Local Agency Biennial Notice. 

Res. 14-34 

F. SUBJECT: Final Acceptance of the Whitesbridge & Vineland Joint Trench 
Improvement Project (GH) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution accepting the 
Whitesbridge and Vineland Joint Trench Improvement Project and 
authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 

Res. 14-35 

G. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Annual Agreement with Fresno County 
Sheriff's Department for Police Dispatch Services (JKB) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution approving annual 
agreement with Fresno County Sheriff's Department. 

Res 14-36 

H. SUBJECT: Certification and Claim of Measure C Extension Local 
Transportation Revenues for Fiscal Year 2014/15 (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution authorizing Finance 
Director to submit certification and claim form for Measure C Extension 
Local Transportation Revenues for Fiscal Year 2014/15 to the Fresno 
County Transportation Authority. 

Res 14-37 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Approval of Resolution Confirming Diagram 
and Assessments for the Annual Levy 2014-2015 for Landscaping and 
Lighting District No. 1 (GH) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council conduct a public hearing, receive public 
testimony and adopt resolution confirming the diagram and 
assessments for Landscaping and Lighting District No. 1 for 2014-2015 
annual levy in the amounts specified. 

Open/Closed PH 
Approved RD/DW  
(4-0-1) NF 
 
 
Res 14-38 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Confirming the Weed Abatement Summary Cost 
Report for 2013 (LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution confirming Weed 
Abatement Summary Cost Report for 2013 and to file a special lien with 
the County Assessor/Tax Collector for collection of costs. 

Approved RD/DW  
(4-0-1) NF 
 
 
 
Res 14-39 

8



B. SUBJECT: Resolution Rejecting Bids for the 2014 Concrete Project (GH)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution rejecting all of the bids 
for the 2014 Concrete Project and instruct staff to revise the scope of 
work for the project and re-advertise for bids for the project. 

Approved DW/BN  
(4-0-1) NF 
 
 
Res 14-40 

C. SUBJECT: Resolutions Adopting the City of Kerman Fiscal Year 
2014/2015 Budget (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review the budget and take the following 
separate action: 

Approved DW/BN  
(4-0-1) NF 
 

1.  Adopt Resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Operating and 
Capital Budgets and amending the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Budget; and 

Res 14-41 

2.  Adopt Resolution establishing the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 
2014/2015. 

Res 14-42 

D. SUBJECT: Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
County of Fresno for the Preparation of a Multi-Jurisdictional Housing 
Element (LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the County of Fresno for the preparation of 
a Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Element and authorize the City manager 
to execute the MOU. 

Approved DW/BN  
(4-0-1) NF 
 
 
 
Res 14-43 

E. SUBJECT: Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman (TJ) Tabled to July 2, 2014 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review proposals and adopt resolution 
selecting preferred banking service provider for the City of Kerman. 

 

F. SUBJECT: Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Update (PG) Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff seeks Council input, suggestions and 
approval for the Katey’s Kids Park restroom facility. 

 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

COUNCIL RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY  7:45 p.m. 

7. CLOSED SESSION 7:52 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; 
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee 
organization: City of Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and 
Kerman Public Safety Employees Association. 

No reportable action. 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 9:10 p.m. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 9:11 p.m. 

 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS ARE RECREATION 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JULY 2, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks & Recreation Director & Luis Patlan, Director of Planning & Development 

Subject: Proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council review and provide input on the proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
Staff is proposing to commission a mural of the Kerman Inn on the building wall behind the Chamber of Commerce 
facing the Sebastian parking lot. The pencil sketch is being presented to various community groups for review and 
comment before proceeding with a colored rendering and cost for the mural. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
Sebastian owns the building where the mural is proposed. Although Sebastian is supportive of the concept, a formal 
authorization is needed in order to place the mural on the wall.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City of Kerman is proposing to commission a mural project of the Kerman Inn on the wall behind the Chamber 
of Commerce Office facing the Sebastian parking lot. The first step was to have Clovis-based artist Claudia Fletcher 
prepare a sketch of the mural. Claudia was the artist who painted the steamboat “gateway” mural located at the 
north end of Kerman along Madera Avenue and the blacksmith shop at the Senior Center. 
 
The sketch of the Kerman Inn is enclosed as Attachment ‘A’ and the building face view is depicted in Attachment ‘B’. 
The original Kerman Inn was built in 1906 at the northwest corner of Madera Avenue and C Street. The Kerman Inn 
was razed in 1993 and a parking lot was developed in its place. The wall presents a unique opportunity to pay 
tribute to the Kerman Inn by placing the mural facing its original location. 
 
The mural depicts the Kerman Inn over time and includes the old water tower in the background. An inscription will 
be located below the mural providing historical context of the Kerman Inn. In addition, goose neck lighting will be 
included above the mural. The mural will be approximately 15’ high and 28’ in length. 
 
The next step is for the artist to prepare a colored rendering and cost estimate for the mural. The cost estimate will 
be based on whether the mural is painted directly onto the wall or painted on panels. Staff prefers the latter since the 
cost would be less and the mural can be removed and placed elsewhere if need be. 
 

39



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
Proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project 
  
The proposed Kerman Inn mural was presented to several community groups including the Parks and Recreation 
Commission and the Planning Commission. Both groups are supportive of the concept and had no major changes to 
the sketch. If approved by the City Council and Sebastian, a cost estimate will be prepared and fundraising efforts 
will follow to raise money for the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
No funding is requested from the City at this time. Council may elect to allocate funding for the mural at a later date, 
once the final mural designs have been completed, funding will be sought through grants and private donations and 
fundraisers. 
 
 
Attachments: 

 
A. Proposed Kerman Inn Mural 
B. Mural Wall View 
 

  

40



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
Proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Proposed Kerman Inn Mural 
 

 
 

41



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 4 
Proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

Mural Wall View 

 

42



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JULY 2, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning & Development 
Subject: Sphere of Influence Boundary Change 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council approve submittal of an application to LAFCo to amendment the Sphere of Influence.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City of Kerman adopted a Sphere of Influence (SOI) as part of the 2007/2027 General Plan update. The SOI 
represents the City’s ultimate growth boundary over the 20 year General Plan period. The SOI boundary consists of 
a total of 4,163 acres. The City would like to proceed with an application to LAFCo to amend the SOI boundary. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The County of Fresno will need to amend the existing Tax Sharing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to include 
the City’s proposed SOI boundary. The MOU covers sales and property tax sharing between the City and the 
County as property is annexed to the City and detached from the County. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The Sphere of Influence is a critical part of the City of Kerman’s General Plan. The SOI incorporates land to 
accommodate growth over a twenty year horizon. As reflected in Attachment ‘A’, the adopted SOI boundary consists 
of a total of 4,163 acres. As development in the SOI boundary is proposed, the property is subsequently annexed 
into the City of Kerman and detached from the County of Fresno and from any special districts. 
 
The City’s adopted SOI has not yet been approved by LAFCo. The City is currently operating within the old SOI 
boundary. The City’s existing SOI is coterminous with the City Limits on the east and west with only 366 acres north 
of Whitesbridge available for new residential/commercial/office development and 752 acres south of California that 
is exclusively designated for industrial development. Thus, there is limited land available to accommodate growth 
through the 2027 plan year. 
 
The collapse of the housing market and economic recession truncated growth to the point where there was no 
pressure to amend the SOI boundary. As the economy continues on its slow path of recovery, it is time once again 
to revisit the SOI boundary. 
 

  

43



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 5 
SOI Boundary Change 
  
The Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) is responsible for reviewing and approving Sphere of 
Influence boundary changes proposed by cities. LAFCo is an independent board consisting of five members. 
Membership includes two representatives from the Board of Supervisors, two representatives from the incorporated 
cities, and one public member at large. 
 
LAFCo policy requires that any SOI boundary change must be consistent with the Tax Sharing MOU between the 
County and the respective city requesting the boundary change. Thus, the new SOI boundary must be agreed to by 
the County and included in the MOU in advance in order for LAFCo to approve the SOI. 
 
The support from the County of Fresno is critical in order for the City to succeed in amending its SOI boundary. The 
County of Fresno and all of the cities entered into a Property Tax Sharing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to 
share property and sales tax revenues in connection with properties annexing to cities and detaching from the 
County (including special districts). Thus, as property is annexed and developed the MOU contains a formula for the 
sharing of new sales and property taxes generated by such development. This tax sharing ensures that the County 
and special districts are made whole in terms of loss of property taxes and that the County receives a share of new 
sales taxes since the County’s policy is to direct new development to the incorporated cities and not in the 
unincorporated areas. The City of Kerman currently shares 5% of its sales tax with the County of Fresno. 
 
In September of 2009, the City held a series of meeting with County staff to discuss amending the MOU to include 
the City’s adopted Sphere of Influence boundary. County staff presented the City’s request to amend the SOI 
boundary to the Board of Directors for approval. After much discussion, the Board of Supervisors decided to delay 
action on Kerman’s SOI boundary change and directed staff to meet with all of the cities to negotiate a new master 
tax sharing MOU. The Board’s position was that the County provides mandated services to residents of all cities in 
the County and the current tax sharing formula is not sufficient to offset its obligations. At the time, the Board of 
Supervisors recently concluded a difficult budget adoption process during the height of the Great Recession. The 
County and the fifteen cities held multiple discussions on modifying the tax sharing agreement throughout 2010 but 
a consensus was never reached. Thus, each city was left to individually negotiate a new tax sharing agreement with 
the County. 
 
The City Manager has met with County staff over the past year to revisit the City’s request to amend its SOI 
boundary. Initially, County staff was supportive of the City’s amended SOI only if we reduced the total land to be 
included in the SOI from 3,045 to 965. In the most recent discussion with County staff, the City asked if the County 
would be receptive to accepting the City’s adopted SOI with the caveat that a growth management threshold be 
included similar to what Clovis and Fresno have in their respective MOUs. The County staff indicated that they 
would be supportive of the concept, but the Board of Supervisors would have final approval. 
 
The City is proposing that the County accept the City’s adopted SOI boundary totaling 4,163 acres based on a two 
tiered growth area for 2017 and 2027 plan period. The first tier would represent the 2017 Growth Area and the 
second tier would represent the 2027 Growth Area. The City and the County would agree that 60% of the 
developable area in the each respective area would need to be “committed development” before any new growth or 
development can occur within the 2027 growth area. For example, a total of 1,331 acres lies within the 2017 Growth 
Area and when 60% or 799 acres in this area is committed to development then new growth and development can 
occur in the 2027 Growth Area. 
 
Under the language in the Tax Sharing Agreement with the City of Clovis, committed development is defined as “a 
parcel that is constructed upon, has an approved tentative tract map, or has an approved Site Plan Review that is 
either annexed to the City or the City has a pending annexation application before LAFCo.” 
 

44



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 5 
SOI Boundary Change 
  
The table below reflects the breakdown of acreage: 
 

Land Use Existing SOI (Ac.) 2017 Growth Area (Ac.) 2027 Growth Area (Ac.) Total Ac. 
Residential/Commercial/Office 366 965 887 2,218 
Industrial 752 - 1,193 1,945 

Total Acres 1,118 965 2,080 4,163 
 
The Land Use Map in Attachment ‘B’ depicts all of the various land use designations within the City of Kerman. Most 
of the future residential and commercial growth is designated to the east, west and north. Industrial and service 
commercial development continues to be planned south of California Avenue. 
 
As the economy continues to slowly improve, the need for land to accommodate growth will increase. Kerman needs 
to be prepared to accommodate future development by amending its SOI boundary. Staff is asking that the City 
Council authorize the staff to proceed with negotiations with the County and subsequently file an application before 
LAFCo to amend the SOI. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The application fee to amend the Sphere of Influence is $16,000. This amount is included in the adopted FY 
2014/15 budget. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. SOI Boundary Map 
B. Land Use Map 

 
 
  

45



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 5 
SOI Boundary Change 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 

SOI Boundary Map 
  

46



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 5 
SOI Boundary Change 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

Land Use Map 
 

 

47



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JULY 2, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council review proposals and adopt resolution selecting preferred banking service provider for the City of Kerman. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

On May 20, 2014, a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Banking Services was sent to the three local banks. Two of the 
three local banks responded to the RFP before the May 30, 2014 deadline: Central Valley Community Bank and 
WestAmerica Bank. Bank of America did not submit a proposal. The RFP included Account Analysis statements for 
the months of February, March and April 2014 so comparisons would be based on the City’s recent account activity. 
The RFP allows the Council and staff to review banking services and costs on a competitive basis.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  

 
None 

 
DISCUSSION  
 

The City of Kerman has been banking with Central Valley Community Bank (CVCB) since July 2007. In the interest of 
ensuring competitive rates, maximizing investment earnings and maintaining a high level of service, staff prepared a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Banking Services. In preparing the RFP, staff also wanted the Council to select a 
preferred bank prior to converting banking information into the new accounting software.  
 

Central Valley Community Bank provides full service banking services to the City of Kerman including electronic 
banking services, on-line daily cash transactions, stop payments, transfers, ACH (transmittal of electronic payroll for 
employees) and remote deposits. Currently the City of Kerman has four main accounts: the General Fund checking 
and money market accounts and the Successor Agency checking and money market accounts. The majority of all 
City activity is processed through the General Fund checking account. Due to the overall level of deposits and 
banking activity, CVCB has waived its customary banking fees resulting in no cost to the City.  

The RFP was released on May 20, 2014 and the deadline to submit a proposal was May 30, 2014. Central Valley 
Community Bank and WestAmerica Bank were the only two local banks that submitted a proposal. After reviewing 
the two proposals staff held telephone interviews with both WestAmerica and Central Valley Community Bank on 
June 3, 2014 to review essential banking services. The Finance Director along with both senior Account Clerks 
participated in the interviews.  

48



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 2 of 6 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  
 
Staff asked for clarification from the information submitted in the RFP such as banking hours, if interest would be paid 
on the General Fund checking account and other services offered to streamline processes. Below is a recap of the 
general services offered by each bank.  
  

 
 
The full cost comparison between Central Valley Community Bank and WestAmerica Bank is detailed in Attachment 
‘A’. Based on the estimated three month average volume, the estimated banking service costs from Central Valley 
Community Bank and WestAmerica Bank are $716.97 and 757.12, respectively.  
 
A copy of the two proposals is on file in the Finance Department should the Council wish to review the documents. 
On June 4, 2014, Central Valley Community Bank submitted a letter included as Attachment ‘B’ clarifying the bank’s 
management team and organizational structure at the Kerman branch.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The City is currently not charged banking service fees by Central Valley Community Bank. The two proposals 
received include service charges based on a three month average volume of banking services. The estimated 
monthly service fees for Central Valley Community Bank total $716.97 and the service fees for WestAmerica Bank 
total $757.12. 
  
PUBLIC HEARING  

 
None Required 

 
Attachments: 

A. Cost Comparison between Central Valley Community Bank and WestAmerica Bank 
B. Letter from Central Valley Community Bank defining branch organization 
C. Resolution Selecting Preferred Banking Service Provider 

  

Service Central Valley Community Bank WestAmerica Bank

Lobby Hours
9 a.m. - 5 p.m. M-Thurs                               

9 a.m. - 6 p.m. Friday
9 a.m. - 4 p.m. M-Thurs                               

9 a.m. - 6 p.m. Friday

Yes No

(Actual earnings thru May is $260.53)
No No

(CVCB  has waived fees in the past)

Other Fees All fees included in analysis Other fees listed in proposal

Investment Earnings on General Actual earnings of $712.49 from Est. earnings of $514.78 from
Fund Money Market Account February - April 2014 February - April 2014

Other
Direct email communication with 

Branch Manager/Customer Service 
All email communication first sent to 

corporate office

Interest on General Fund Checking 

Fees Waived

49



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 3 of 6 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Comparison of Banking Proposals 
 

 
  

Average Central Valley Total Total
Description of Estimated  Community Service WestAmerica Service
Services Rendered Volume Bank Price Charge Bank Price Charge

Cash Deposited 989.89               0.13                   128.69               $1.30/$1000 128.68            

Charge Back Items 3.33                   8.00                   26.67                 10.00                 33.33             

Internet ACH 502.67               0.15                   75.40                 0.09                   45.24             

Checks Cashed "On-Us" 4.67                   0.14                   0.65                   -                    -                 

Remote Deposits 61.00                 0.15                   9.15                   0.10                   6.10               

Remote Deposit Fees 1.00                   100.00               100.00               50.00                 50.00             

Debit Web Transfers 0.67                   0.14                   0.09                   0.09                   0.06               

Internet Banking Services 1.00                   25.00                 25.00                 20.00                 20.00             

Maintenance Fees 2.00                   15.00                 30.00                 17.00                 34.00             

Debits Processed 209.33               0.14                   29.31                 0.15                   31.40             

Credits Processed 25.33                 1.40                   35.47                 1.30                   32.93             

ACH Debit Fees 18.33                 0.15                   2.75                   0.09                   1.65               

ACH Credit Fees 30.33                 0.15                   4.55                   0.09                   2.73               

"On-Us" Item Fee 590.00               0.09                   50.15                 0.10                   59.00             

Foreign Item Fees 1,469.67             0.11                   161.66               0.11                   161.66            

Service Charges 37.43                 36.95             

Other:

Incoming Wire As Needed 15.00                 

Outgoing Wire As Needed 35.00                 

PC Outgoing Wire As Needed 10.00                 

Stop Payment As Needed 30.00                 

PC Stop Payment As Needed 18.00                 

ACH Software License 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00                   40.00             

ACH File Transmissions 6.50 0.00 0.00 10.00                 65.00             

Check Image Items 209.33 0.00 0.00 0.04                   8.37               

Total Cost for Services 716.97               757.12            

BANKING SERVICE CHARGE COMPARISON

50



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 4 of 6 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

Letter from CVCB 

 

51



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 5 of 6 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Attachment ‘B’ (cont’d) 

 
  

52



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 6 of 6 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
SELECTING A BANKING SERVICE PROVIDER AND ESTABLISH A RELATIONSHIP MANAGER 

 
 WHEREAS, local governments use a wide variety of banking services for the deposit, disbursement, and 
safekeeping of public monies; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that prudent procurement practices necessitate the reevaluation 
of banking services on a periodic basis and that changes in technology, cash management practices and banking 
industry structure offer opportunities to reevaluate banking services and costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is consistent “Best Practices” to periodically initiate a competitive bidding and negotiation 
process in accordance with state and local laws for banking services through an official request for proposal; 
establish a relationship manager who will best understand the needs of the City and who will be able to provide 
service improvement recommendations to the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for banking services and received two (2) 
submittals which were evaluated by Finance staff consisting of the Finance Director and two Senior Account Clerks; 
and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES that __________ bank 
be the City of Kerman’s primary banking service provider effective July 3, 2014. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 2nd 
day of July, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
        ABSENT:  
      ABSTAIN:  
              
        Gary Yep 
        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

53



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                      Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS & RECREATION 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JULY 2, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks & Recreation Department Director 
Subject: Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Options 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Staff seeks Council’s input, suggestions and approval for the Katey’s Kids Park restroom facility. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
At the June 18th City Council meeting, Council requested staff to come back with updated pricing and options for the 
single Ozark I and double Cortez restroom facilities for Katey’s Kids Park. The City is still planning on purchasing the 
restroom through the National Joint Powers Authority (NJPA) program, which offers discount pricing. While the 
NJPA program has been price analyzed, competitively bid, and legally executed by the NJPA, staff is checking with 
Fresno County to insure that NJPA bidding process meets the CDBG criteria. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
Delivery time may be 90 days or longer for the receipt of the facility, placing the order timely is critical to meeting the 
park completion date of October 31, 2014.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
On June 18, staff presented to the Council the proposed Ozark I single (unisex) restroom facility for Katey’s Kids 
Park. During the discussion, Council was concerned about the number of visitors to the park and requested pricing 
and options for a double restroom facility. The pricing for the single (Ozark I) and double (Cortez) restroom is 
detailed in Attachment ‘A’ and Attachment ‘B’, respectively, and summarized below: 
 

Pricing Ozark I Single Restroom Cortez Double Restroom 
Base Price $24,475 $36,850 
Selected Options/Accessories $8,275 $10,348 
One-Way Transportation $4,841.51 $4,841.51 
Taxes/Fees $7,427.15 $9,015.67 

Total $45,018.66 $61,055.18 
 
The Cortez model double restroom costs $16,000 more than the single Ozark I model. The selected options are the 
minimum accessories that staff feels would be needed for the restrooms including two-tone color scheme, stainless 
steel plumbing fixtures, stainless steel urinal, electric hand dryer, ADA exterior drinking fountain, timed electric lock 
system, toilet seat cover dispenser, and paint touch up kit. The Council may wish to include additional options. The 
final cost of the restrooms will be based on the options selected.  

54



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 8 
Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Options 
  
 
As reflected in the Elevations in Attachment ‘B’ and ‘D’, standard features for both models include simulated barn 
wood siding, simulated shake roofing, interior and exterior lighting and maintenance access room.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Staff budgeted $45,000 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds in FY 2014/15 for the single Ozark I 
restroom. An additional $3,000 is needed in order to extend utilities to the site for a total cost of $48,000. Should the 
Cortez double restroom be selected, the costs for the restroom would be $61,055 plus $3,000 for site preparation 
totaling $64,055. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Ozark I Price and Options 
B. Ozark I Elevations & Floor Plan 
C. Cortez Price and Options 
D. Cortez Elevations & Floor Plan 

  

55



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 8 
Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Options 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Ozark I Price and Options 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

56



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 8 
Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Options 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

Ozark I Elevations & Floor Plan 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  

57



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 8 
Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Options 
  

Attachment ‘B’ (cont’d) 
 

Ozark I Elevations & Floor Plan 
 

 
 
  

58



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 8 
Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Options 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

Cortez Price and Options 
 

 

59



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 8 
Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Options 
  

Attachment ‘D’ 
 

Cortez Elevations & Floor Plan 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  

60



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 8 
Katey’s Kids Park Restroom Options 
  

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 
 

Cortez Elevations & Floor Plan 
 

61


	Agenda
	Proclamation Acknowledging July as Parks Make Life Better Month
	Staff Report - Proclamation

	Minutes
	June 18, 2014

	Payroll
	May 25-June 7, 2014
	June 8-21, 2014

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Purposed Kerman Inn Mural Project
	Staff Report - Proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project

	Sphere of Influence Boundary Change
	Staff Report - SOI Boundary Change

	Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman
	Staff Report - Banking RFP

	Katey's Kids Park Restroom Update
	Staff Report - Katey's Kids Park Restroom Options


